
104. 

       Florence, New Jersey  08518-2323 
       November 15, 2010 
 
The regular meeting of the Florence Township Planning Board was held on the above 
date at the Municipal Complex, 711 Broad Street, Florence, NJ.  Chairperson Hamilton-
Wood called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. followed by a salute to the flag. 
 
Chairperson Hamilton-Wood then read the following statement:  “I would like to 
announce that this meeting is being held in accordance with the provisions of the Open 
Public Meetings Act.  Adequate notice has been provided to the official newspapers and 
posted in the main hall of the municipal complex.” 
 
Upon roll call the following members were found to be present: 
 
Mayor Bill Berry    Wayne Morris 
Mildred J. Hamilton-Wood   Paul Ostrander 
Tim Lutz     Sean P. Ryan, Council Representative 
Jim Molimock     Frederick Wainwright, Alt. #1 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Solicitor David Frank 
 
ABSENT: Charles Bauer, Alt. #2 
  Engineer Dan Guzzi (excused) 
  Planner Joseph Petrongolo (excused) 
 
Chairperson Hamilton-Wood stated that Engineer Guzzi and Planner Petrongolo were 
excused, as there are no applications for review this evening. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
Chairperson Hamilton-Wood stated that due to a family matter Solicitor Frank was 
unable to prepare the resolutions for this months meeting and the resolutions will be 
adopted at the December meeting of the Board. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Motion of Lutz, seconded by Morris to approve the Minutes from the regular meeting of 
October 18, 2010 as submitted.  Motion unanimously approved by all members present. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
A. Letter from Engineer Guzzi dated November 2, 2010 regarding compliance  

review for Rocco’s Pizza. 
 
B. Letter from Burlington County Planning Board dated October 20, 2010 regarding 
 Sterling Bank. 



105. 

Motion of Berry, seconded by Lutz to receive and file Correspondence A and B.  Motion 
unanimously approved by all members present. 
 
Chairperson Hamilton-Wood stated that there was no Old or New Business so the Board 
could move on to Other Business. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Public Hearing on a preliminary investigation as to whether certain property  

owned by Griffin Pipe along West Front Street within the Township of Florence  
is “An Area in Need of Redevelopment” within the meaning and intent of said 
statute.” 

 
Mayor Berry stated that Council had authorized a study to determine if this was an area in 
need of redevelopment.  He said that Mark Remsa from Burlington County Office of 
Economic Development offered to prepare the study for Florence Township.  Mr. Remsa 
is in attendance tonight to present his findings. 
 
Mark Remsa was sworn in by Solicitor Frank and then stated that he was a licensed 
professional planner and licensed landscape architect in the state of New Jersey.  He 
holds a Master of City and Regional Planning, Master in Business Administration and 
Finance, Bachelor of Science in Environmental Planning and Design.  Mr. Remsa stated 
that he has been practicing planning for over 30 years and is currently the Director of 
Economic Development and Regional Planning for the Burlington County Bridge 
Commission. 
 
Chairperson Hamilton-Wood stated that Mr. Remsa is accepted as an expert in planning 
and economic development. 
 
Mr. Remsa displayed a map of the subject area, which is located in the northwestern 
corner of the Township and is made up of a little over 150 acres if you add the properties 
together.  These properties are known as Block 175, Lots 1.02 and 1.05 and Block 
156.01, Lot 2 on the Florence Township Tax Map. 
 
Mr. Remsa referred the Board to the report dated May 2010 titled “Township of Florence, 
Determination of Redevelopment Needs Study”.  He stated that the report identifies the 8 
conditions, which if one or all, were met would constitute an area in need of 
redevelopment.  The analysis goes on a lot by lot basis but Mr. Remsa stated that he 
would be consolidating them together since this was the old Griffin Pipe Foundry 
property.  Today this is a vacant industrial complex that has a file with the New Jersey 
Department of Environmental Protection meaning there are some contamination issues 
and clean up issues.   
 
The site meets Criteria B, D and E in that it is not be used as originally intended as it has 
been operated as a foundry.  Many of the buildings are obsolete.  They are also uniquely 



106. 

designed just for foundry use so it would be very difficult to find a new use for the 
property. 
 
Mr. Remsa stated that also the fact that the property has a file with NJDEP means that 
there are other major hurdles with having this property redeveloped.  The area north of 
the road toward the river is where the major part of the foundry is located.  Then there is 
landfill and some other parcels associated with the pipe foundry.  It is important to look 
at this area in total because that is what it would take to have this area redeveloped.  
Tonight we don’t know how this area would be redeveloped.  This is the first step for the 
Planning Board to determine that yes we looked at the report and if the Board agrees with 
those findings the Board adopts a resolution making that recommendation to the 
governing body. 
 
Mr. Remsa said that in his opinion this area in total does qualify under those several 
criteria to be designated as an area in need of redevelopment.  He stated that this was the 
end of his presentation and asked for questions from the Board or public. 
 
Solicitor Frank said that Mr. Remsa had spoken about viewing the properties in their 
totalities and clearly with regard to the core of the manufacturing operation there are 
obsolescent special purpose buildings, contamination and other issues that would identify 
this site as a redevelopment area.  He asked for some more testimony on conditions on 
the lots included in the study area that are on the south side of Front Street. 
 
Mr. Remsa stated that there is a large landfill area.  This has environmental issues.  There 
are also areas along the street where there has been trucking operation with extensive 
amounts of black top, in other words amount of impervious cover.  There are also 
obsolete buildings.  These areas along the road with the excessive impervious cover and 
the landfill area flank a wooded area that is left in the core center of the south side of the 
site.  This core area is wooded and by itself would not qualify as an area in need of 
redevelopment, but this area does have some improvements and areas that have been 
disturbed and this is all together in Lot 2.  So while a portion of Lot 2 is just wooded, 
close to half of it has redevelopment issues. 
 
Mr. Remsa stated that it was his professional expert opinion that it would be very difficult 
to develop just that wooded parcel that lies in the center without taking steps to address 
the concerns that arise with the remainder of the parcels on that side of the road.  He 
stated that in order to entice redevelopment you don’t want it so overly challenged that 
you can’t redevelop the whole area so you do want to include the center portion along 
with the obsolete impervious covered areas.   
 
Member Wainwright asked what would have to be done with the landfill?  Mr. Remsa 
stated that he couldn’t say.  He stated that this site already has a file with the NJDEP and 
is already under the Brownfield Rules.  The next step in this would be after the resolution 
is passed, assuming the Board finds that it is appropriate, it would then go to Council.  
Council rules on it and passes a resolution designating the area as an area of 
redevelopment.  Once this is competed the next step is that Council decides that they 



107. 

need to prepare a redevelopment plan.  The redevelopment plan is a hybrid document that 
is part master plan but also part zoning and regulations so what you do is adopt this by 
ordinance as this becomes local law.  The redevelopment will answer questions about the 
site.  The last step is implementation.  That is trying to work with the property owner to 
either work with the property owner to redevelop it and have it sold or to have someone 
who is an expert in redevelopment work with that.   
 
Mr. Remsa stated that for properties with this level of contamination residential 
development is out, as it becomes cost prohibitive.  A lot of these properties that are old 
heavy industry are highly limited in how you can reuse them and they are best used for 
industrial commercial applications. 
 
Solicitor Frank stated that regardless as to who actually prepares the redevelopment plan 
it will come back to the Board for their comment and review. 
 
Council Representative Ryan asked for an explanation of the 3 starred areas on the plan 
that were listed as contaminated sites.  Mr. Remsa stated that this is where the NJDEP has 
findings.  He stated that this information is on line and can be easily looked up.  
 
Motion of Berry, seconded by Wainwright to open the hearing to public comment.  
Motion unanimously approved by all members present. 
 
Seeing no one wishing to offer comment, motion was made by Berry, seconded by Ryan 
to close the public comment.  Motion unanimously approved by all members present. 
 
Solicitor Frank stated that the Board is being asked to determine whether of not you agree 
with the findings in this draft plan and if so then you would be recommending to the 
governing body that they find that this is an area in need of redevelopment.  He suggested 
that the Board would have a motion that adopts this, recommends that it is an area that 
needs redevelopment and directs him to write on the board’s behalf communicating that 
which will be followed up by a resolution next month. 
 
Motion of Berry, seconded by Ostrander to approve this plan and recommend it to 
Council.   
 
On the Question: 
 
Council Representative Ryan asked if it was a legal requirement for Solicitor Frank to 
write this letter to Council or would it be appropriate for the Board’s Clerk to write this 
letter?  Solicitor Frank stated that the Board Clerk could report this to the Council, but 
added that when the Board was communicating as a body the solicitor is supposed to be 
the mouthpiece.  When there is communication that is purely ministerial, where you are 
moving a piece of information around it is appropriate for the Board Clerk or Secretary to 
do that.  Council Member Ryan stated that it is the Board’s decision but he wanted to see 
what the Board felt was more appropriate to do.  Solicitor Frank stated that generally 
your lawyer is your mouthpiece. 



108. 

Member Wainwright asked if it would be possible to use the waterfront at the Griffin site.  
Mr. Remsa stated that there is no reason why there couldn’t be public access to the 
waterfront in this area. 
 
Member Morris asked how long it would take to get this off the ground.  Mr. Remsa said 
that it might take a long time, as these properties are difficult to redevelop.  It may take 
many years for this but if you don’t start now nothing will ever happen. 
 
Upon roll call the Board voted as follows: 
 
YEAS:  Berry, Hamilton-Wood, Lutz, Molimock, Morris, Ostrander, Ryan 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Bauer 
 
Mr. Remsa stated that his office is available to work on the redevelopment plan if the 
township would like them to. 
 
Motion of Berry, seconded by Lutz to adjourn the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 
 
            
       Paul Ostrander, Secretary 
 
PO/ne 


